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BUILDING CITATION

Construction of the Cathédral began in 1857 to a design, allegedly by

the Engllsh architects the Hansom brothers, modified and supervised by
the architects Shaw & Dowden. Building halted many times and by 1863 when

"."the nave and side aisles were opened the local architect J.B.Denny (a protege

of Pugin) had taken over the work. In 1870 the transepts, side chapels, chanc

- and sacristy were completed, and in 189) Reed, Smart & Tappin designed

furnishings. Although of a conventional basilican cross section and cruciferm
and conventional materials - bluestone with freestone dressings, the building :

. notable for its fine detailing and intactness. The influence of Pugin is refl:

in the tracery of the windows, mouldings and openinas. The bluestone nave arc:
and scissor beam roof structure are also of note. The fence and entrance czte:
cast iron are important for their unusual and elaborate design and extent. T}
building is of statewide importance for its associations, Pugin inspired detzil
and intactness. It forms part of an intact Cathedral complex that has no
parallels in Victoria.

RECQOFLZUDATIONS

It is recommended that this building be added to the Historic Bu1ldlncs Peciste
the Register of the National Estate, and be specified under Clause 8 of the To-
and Ccuntry Plarning. Act (Third Schedule). It is recommended for inclusion on
Historic Buildings Register as it forms part of an important complex of builidir

.with the hall and Presbytery.
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ST.PATRICKS CATHEDRAL, CNR. STURT AND DAWSON STREETS
BUILDING ANATYSIS AND DESCLHIPTION

Tenders were called for the Cathedral on 4 November,lSS?l and work commenced
in December of that year.2 The design is believed to be a scaled down
version of a-proposal for st.Patricks Cathedral Melbourne by the English
architects the Hansom brothers. The architects for this stage were

Shaw & Dowden.3 On 4 February 1858 Bishop Gould laid the foundation

stone of the nave and side aisle.4 During 1858 the freestone was

condemned and work stopped. iork on the building continued intermitfently
over the next five years;’ éhe columns being erected in 1861. At some
time prior to 1863 J.B.Denny, a local architect who had worked on the

staff of Pugin and superintended work at St.Fatricks Cathedral Melbourne,

took over as architect. The nave and side aisles were opened on

~ 8 November 1863. The opening ceremony was reported by the Ballarat Star

the following day.

aSt.Patricks opened on Sunday November 8 1863,  The building
was commenced two - three years ago; one of the causes of
the delay was the aiterations of the original design and change
in some materials used. Alterations and superintendance by
Mr.J.B.Denny, one of the staff of the late Mr.Pugin......The
building is of bluestone with freestone mullions and tracery,

he style of architecture is decorated Gothic of the time of _
Edward the First, The windows are filled with geometric tracery
with amber tinted glass. The centre aisle is paved with Mintons -
encaustic tiles. The principal portions of the masonry were under

" contract of Mr.Stombuco. Completion of the church has been ’
effected by Mr.John Cummins; the ornamentation of the altar

‘was executed by Mr.Whithy, staining and varnishing by Mr.Robson.*

1. Ballarat Star’é N&GeﬁbeF.1857: S ST
2. Ballarat Séar.iz December 1537:.' S
3. Withers; History of Ballarat p.267.
4. loc. cit. o

5. Ballarat Times 12 November 1869.
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ST.PATRICKS CATHEDRAL, CNR. STURT AND DAWSON STREETS (contd.)

BUITDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTICN
) - e
‘he nave and aisles cost,gIZ,OCO; the after contracts amounted to a

larger sum, and 21,500 was spent on the iron fence afound the reserve.

In 1869 Denny called tenders for completion of St.Patricks,7 this work
included the transepts, side-chapels, chancel and sacristy.8 In November
.1869 the Building Times reported on the building's progress. "Rev. Dean
Moore has resolved to comglete the entire church ~ the work is now ié'hand
and far advanced in the transepts, chancel, side chapels and sacristies.
The materials are bluestone walls with Kangarco Point freestone dressings
with the roof priﬁcipals of oregon,stained and varnished. ;fl,OOO to be
spent on stained glass with a éotal cost ofijS,OOO."g Further tenders \—)

were called by Denny for the building's completion in November 1870.10

In 1821 Reed Smart and Tappin called tenders for decoration of the

interior,ll and in 1910 Clegg and Miller produced drawings for furniture.l2

This‘is a church in the thirteenth century decorated Gothic style,
'allegedly designed in England-by the Hansom brothers to be the Melbourne
Cathed;a;, but reduced in size for the present site. It is pf conbentional
basilican crosé;section and cruciform plan, with an internal width of 19
metres, a nave iength of 32 metres, and transepts 20 metrés across. The
walls are of bluestone and the dressings of Kanéaroo Poiﬁg freestone frcom
Tasmania. A three light lancet window gives into each of the five bhays k_)
along the length of the nave and two of the chancel, and at clerestory

level a éorresponding thee lancet window,. while there is“a great fiﬁe

light window at the liturgical east end. The local agchitect J.B.Denny

was a former protege of.Pugiﬁ, and this is reflected in the care which has

been taken to vary the details of the window tracery, mouldings and openings.

6. Withers, p.267.

7. Argus 13 April 1869.

8. Withers, p.267.

9. Building Times 12 November 1869.

10. Argus 28.11.1870.

11. Australasizan Builders and Contractors News 132.6.1891.

12z, vernon Collection.
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ST.PATRICKS CATHEDRAL, CHNR. STURT AND DAWSON STREETS {contd.)
BUILDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTION

Flanking the main entrance are two niches, épparently designed for
statues, each with a sort of Gothic half domed canopy top, with a
pair of pinnacles and a gable terminating in a crocket, al) set against
the wall face. The label moulds of the west door and windows terminate

in heads of bishops, kings and one nun. .

-

Internally there is a éallery at the entrance an@ extending the width

of the nave only and carried on slim columns, The nave arcade consists
of broad bluestone arches carried on octagonal biuestone plers, and

opens out in a broader arch where it gives onto the transept, reducing
again in the two bays of the chéncél where it gives onto side chapéls.

The clerestory wall above is plastered and painted as ashlar masonry,

but there is a horizontal stringcourse above the arcade, and above each
arch springing is a bluestone corbel cérrfing a length of blueétone

shaft, which then continues in timber to'the base of the roof principals.
These are oregon scissor beam trusses carrying a stained and-varnished
timber ceiling over the navé,‘while over the,chanéel the complete panelling
of the ceiling follbws a cusped or hammer beam profile. Under the rear
gallery a timber panelled entrance lobby ﬁas been formed, with léédlighted

glazing of a post-art nouveau character.

The "whole bﬁilding'is particularly intact other than fhe usual alterations
to the altar to suit the new form of worship. Externally the elaborate
iron palisade fence which runs around the ent%re St.Patricks compiex
emphasises this intactness. This is éuite remarkable for its length and
design. It is cast in large panels that are cusp-headed with small
quatrefoils at top and bottom. "'Thgre are open work géte posts which

are also repeated at corners and changes in level. These are mostly

. square, although they are octagonal and lacger.

There are open work piers which also serve as gate posts. These are
octagonal for the inner posts of the main entrance and at street corners

and square piers at lesser gates and other intervals along the fence

often at 2 change of level. The octagonal posts rise to an open work done

or crowned top with crockets.
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ST.PATRICKRS CETHEDRAL, CNR., STURT AND DAWSON STREETS (contd.)
BUILDING ANALYSIS AND DESCRIPTION

Although a conventional enough building, its importance really lies in

its somewhat clouded history - whether or not it was designed by the
Hansom brothers - but certainly because of the association with Pugin,
through Denny, which is reflected in detailing. . The intactness of

the building is also important. ' .
The building is important on a statewide basis, not only for these
associations and its intactness, but also as forming part of an intact

Cathedral complex with all building of a high standard.

The group form a significant part of an important environmental area.
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